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Objective
• Build upon SOW Part 1 with more examples & tips



Objective
• Build upon SOW Part 1 with more examples & practical tips

• 3 Challenges + 3 Best Practices

• What to do when you don’t know where to start (time permitting)



Quick Recap



Goal Is Not 
Perfection!



Goal Is Not 
Perfection!

Do Our Best 
Within Resource 

Constraints



…But We 
Can’t Totally 

Miss The 
Target!!!



Too Much Not Enough



Impact of a Poor Scope

– Unclear
– Information is missing
– Overly prescriptive
– Unrealistic 
– Discourages innovation
– The owner is “fishing”
– Misunderstands Needs

– Procurement is Not Fair 

Perceptions of 
Owner Scopes

– Fewer proposals
– Low quality proposals
– Less qualified teams
– Less competitive pricing
– Less consistent pricing
– Open to interpretation
– Have to believe the 

Proposer
– Brings Risk to the Project

Impact



A “High-Performing” Scope 
requires the appropriate perspective…



SOW Objective

What would a High-Performing Vendor want to know?

ALWAYS question whether the SOW….
–Prevents vendors from walking away?
–Allows vendors to provide the best price?
–Gives vendors information to plan their approach?
–Enables vendors to minimize contingency?



SOWs:

3 Challenges
+

3 Best Practices
(for SOWs, with examples)



Summary:
Challenges
1.
2.
3.

Best Practices
1.
2.
3.



Summary:
Challenges
1. SOWs that are too long & detailed
2.
3.

Best Practices
1.
2.
3.



SOW Challenge #1: Too Long, Didn’t Read (tl;dr)

Mistaken Mindset: 
• “If I don’t specify it, then I won’t get what I want”

Result:
• SOWs that are long, detailed, and complex

(which also take more time to prepare!)



SOW Challenge #1: Too Long, Didn’t Read (tl;dr)

• Large, enterprise level software 
–ERP with FIN and HR modules
–$5M total cost for 5 years

• Spent 4 months with a full-time project team collecting 
requirements, documenting needs, holding workshops…



Ex: Table of Contents for HR Module Current State



Ex: Content & Embedded Files for HR Current State

50 pages long…



Ex: after 50 pages of dense content…

22 pages long

15 more embedded files



And then the CC’s for the FINANCE Module…



And then the CC’s for the FINANCE Module…



SOW Document Length

Current Conditions (HR Modules) 52 pages
56 embedded files

Integration Lists (HR Modules) 4 pages

Current Conditions (FIN Modules) 51 pages
27 embedded files

Current Condition Appendices (FIN Module) 4 pages
74 embedded files

List of Requirements (HR Modules) 18 pages
399 requirements (or 446?)

List of Requirements (FIN Modules) 29 pages 
540 requirements (or 570?)

Cost Center Structure 4 pages (size 8 font)

Security Requirements 89 items (x2, 1 for each module)

Technical Requirements 86 items (x2, 1 for each module)

Note: took me 45min to open these files and get page counts

158 pages + 157 embedded files + 1,289 requirements



Result:

• Client’s Scope must:
–Make it easy for Proposers to find & understand the benchmark.

Example: Reviewing 4 Cost Proposals for an ERP System
– Quoted licenses ranged from 0 – 2,200.

– 0 (TBD later after they are awarded the contract) 
– 1,260 to 1,450
– 1,300
– 2,200

How can you compare the Cost Proposals?



Other Examples:



Other Examples:

Professional Services: 

Hundreds of pages of 
reference materials



Remember, vendors are busy!!!

Q’s from Vendors Content in RFPvs.



Remember, vendors are busy!!!

Q’s from Vendors Content in RFPvs.



Remember, vendors are busy!!!

Q’s from Vendors Content in RFPvs.
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2.
3.



Summary:
Challenges
1. SOWs that are too long & detailed
2.
3.

Best Practices
1. Carefully select mandatory vs. desired requirements
2.
3.



Tip#1: Focus on Goals & Current Conditions



Largest Bookstore Contract in History – less than 8 page SOW



Programmatic Goals
1. achieve world class customer satisfaction
2. provide capacity for growth of student population and program 

expansion
3. offer market-competitive pricing
4. drive an increase in sales annually
5. make significant investment in facilities and program
6. provide a significant financial return to the University
7. facilitate a growing online sales volume
8. provide innovative solutions to problems
9. provide Community outreach and contribute to University spirit
10.continue to support University sustainability efforts
11.support the Athletics department
12.support and extend University branding strategies
13.promote sales of new and used textbooks, including a buyback 

program
14.support a financially sustainable textbook rental program
15.sell and support computer hardware, software and accessories

16. support the University Faculty and Staff
17. support graduation (gowns, announcements, rings etc.)
18. offer supplies to support the different programs on campus (for 

example; art, architectural, engineering, math, and general schools 
supplies)

19.provide reference books including but not limited to medical, nursing, 
engineering, etc.

20.dominate the local ASU market, including textbooks, trade books and 
related soft goods

21.convince departments and colleges to use their services instead of 
alternatives driven by product and service superiority

22.achieve world class supplier diversity spend
23.develop and operate facilities with features that make them an 

attractive customer destination rather than simply a place to buy 
course materials

24.work with existing University contractors and service providers to build 
complementary programs for mutual benefit

25.maintain value pricing and keep textbook prices as low as possible
26.maintain a high level of service and provide requested low margin or 

no margin services



Other Goals
Management Expectations
1. A Bookstore Manager that is a leader in the Bookstore management field that offers a best practices 

approach to implementation and delivery, and views the University as a flagship account and an incubator 
for new programs, technology, services, and management strategies.

2. A management team that is the best in the field, and one that is exceptionally knowledgeable, experienced, 
competent and professional in managing all aspects of a large and diverse university academic environment.  
The management team should be collaborative and collegial with ASU and key customer stakeholders.

3. A seamless interface with University systems where necessary.
4. Ongoing, proactive business development and program growth and evolution.

Human Resources Expectations
1. That current ASU Bookstore employees will be retained for a period of two (2) years from the beginning date 

of the contract.
2. Wage, benefits and human resource practices that conform to the University’s Values Based Standards for 

Business Relationships With Significant University Service Providers (see policy here…) 



Other Goals
Financial Expectations
1. A fair and balanced compensation agreement that supports both the Proposer and the University in meeting 

their respective financial objectives.
2. Compensation to the University sufficient to cover the University’s direct and indirect costs and provide funding 

for future growth.
3. A vendor-contributed capital investment plan designed to support the capital development needs over the life 

of the contract.

Measurement of Performance and Cost
1. Vendor shall develop and maintain a system of measurement for performance and cost, with performance 

measurements of Sales, Service, and Student satisfaction.  The objective is to show through measurement that 
ASU is a leader in providing bookstore services.



Rest = Current Conditions



Tip#1: Focus on Goals & Current Conditions

In Summary:
• Start with your Current Conditions & constraints (90% effort)

• Then add your goals/objectives (remaining %)

Beware:
• Vendors will still ask: “What do you want me to do?”
• Never say HOW they should do their job. 



Summary:
Challenges
1. SOWs that are too long & detailed
2.
3.

Best Practices
1. Carefully select mandatory vs. desired requirements
2.
3.



Summary:
Challenges
1. SOWs that are too long & detailed
2. Purposely omitting key information
3.

Best Practices
1. Carefully select mandatory vs. desired requirements
2.
3.



SOW Challenge #2: Omitting Key Info
Ex: Professional Services, client team refused to provide the schedule duration



SOW Challenge #2: Omitting Key Info

Vendor
1

Vendor 
2

Vendor 
3

Vendor 
4

Vendor 
5

Vendor 
6

Vendor 
7

Vendor 
8

Vendor 
9

Price $1.7M $1.4M $1.8M $1.0M $1.1M $1.4M $1.4M $1.1M $1.2M

Ex: Professional Services, client team refused to provide the schedule duration



SOW Challenge #2: Omitting Key Info

• Range from $1.0M to 1.8M = 80% difference!
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Total Points 46.3 81.0 44.9 82.5 73.3 85.6 68.4 85.9 71.8
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SOW Challenge #2: Omitting Key Info

• Range from $1.0M to 1.8M = 80% difference!

• Vendor 8 was 27% cheaper than Vendor 6
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SOW Challenge #2: Omitting Key Info

• Range from $1.0M to 1.8M = 80% difference!

• Vendor 8 was 27% cheaper than Vendor 6
– Price was worth 25 points, so 27% difference ~ 6 or 7 points (pro-rated)
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Ex: Professional Services, client team refused to provide the schedule duration



SOW Challenge #2: Omitting Key Info

• Range from $1.0M to 1.8M = 80% difference!

• Vendor 8 was 27% cheaper than Vendor 6
– Price was worth 25 points, so 27% difference ~ 6 or 7 points (pro-rated)
– Why? Vendor 8 assumed a shorter schedule by more than 6mo

Vendor
1

Vendor 
2

Vendor 
3

Vendor 
4

Vendor 
5

Vendor 
6

Vendor 
7

Vendor 
8

Vendor 
9

Price $1.7M $1.4M $1.8M $1.0M $1.1M $1.4M $1.4M $1.1M $1.2M

Total Points 46.3 81.0 44.9 82.5 73.3 85.6 68.4 85.9 71.8

Ex: Professional Services, client team refused to provide the schedule duration



SOW Challenge #2: Omitting Key Info
Ex: Site Remediation



Ex: Site Remediation

SOW Challenge #2: Omitting Key Info



SOW Challenge #2: Omitting Key Info
Ex: Site Remediation



SOW Challenge #2: Omitting Key Info
Ex: Site Remediation



SOW Challenge #2: Omitting Key Info

“Silt and sand soil, mixed with debris from the 
demolition of the hospital, and often underlain by a 

concrete slab or footings ranging from 1.8 to 3m thick.”

“Primarily dark brown/grey silty sand with 
gravel.”

 Propose a Lump Sum!!!
See any Risk????????

Contaminants: petroleum hydrocarbons, metals (arsenic, 
lead & iron), PAHs, & asbestos-containing materials, etc.

 No benchmark to propose to…
(Contractors caught between a “no bid” 
*or* adding contingency for unknowns) 

Ex: Site Remediation



SOW Challenge #2: Omitting Key Info
Ex: Site Remediation



Set a Benchmark to Propose to!!!!

• Ensure proposals are apples-to-apples (as much as possible)
EXAMPLE

Question: What is the existing water pressure? 



Set a Benchmark to Propose to!!!!

• Ensure proposals are apples-to-apples (as much as possible)
EXAMPLE

Question: What is the existing water pressure? 
Answer:
For the purposes of the proposal, Proposers should assume 
that the existing water pressure is adequate.  The 
waterline (described in RFI #4) is the main line for the 
CLIENT’s main building and currently cover all fire 
suppression and other needs.



Set a Benchmark to Propose to!!!!

• Ensure proposals are apples-to-apples (as much as possible)

• This is the answer to...
“How do I know if I am too Open-Ended?”

• If you’ve established a solid benchmark to bid to…
• … you have probably provided “enough” Scope info to 

avoid being open-ended.



Summary:
Challenges
1. SOWs that are too long & detailed
2. Purposely omitting key information
3.

Best Practices
1. Carefully select mandatory vs. desired requirements
2.
3.



Summary:
Challenges
1. SOWs that are too long & detailed
2. Purposely omitting key information
3.

Best Practices
1. Carefully select mandatory vs. desired requirements
2. Focus on Current Conditions + Overall Goals/Objectives/Outcomes
3.



Tip#2: Balance the Mandatory vs Desired Reqs

Question:
How to distinguish the difference between what should be 
a mandatory qualification and what should be a desirable?

Answer:
A requirement is mandatory if you wouldn’t even consider 
the proposer for missing that 1 item.



Examples:

Recent EAM Software:
• 4 Mandatory vs. 100 Desired

Recent ERP Software
• 53 Mandatory vs. 295 Desired
• (6x larger than the prior example, which had 1,000+ reqs!) 



Mandatory Requirement
• 12ft diameter boring job, 8 miles long, 60ft below surface

Mandatory Requirement: 
• Work on a similar project in the last 5 years in < state >

Questions to ask:
• How many borings like this happen per year in the state?
• How many vendors might be qualified?
• Is this project more/less complex than the typical boring project in the state?



Major Overhaul for a Power Plant
(Minimum Qualifications)

• Minimum 10 years experience
• At least 10 projects in Design-Build (DB) contracts.
• Experience in working on behalf of both owners and DB contractors.
• Minimum of 5 DB projects in [specific State]
• Must have completed 1 DB project working on behalf of a public owner.
• Have completed 1 DB project that was not new construction, but was a 

refurbishment, remodel, or addition in a secure operating facility.
• And more…



Tip#2: Balance the Mandatory vs Desired Reqs

• When in doubt, the answers is to *not* make a 
requirement mandatory!



Summary:
Challenges
1. SOWs that are too long & detailed
2. Purposely omitting key information
3.

Best Practices
1. Carefully select mandatory vs. desired requirements
2. Focus on Current Conditions + Overall Goals/Objectives/Outcomes
3.



Summary:
Challenges
1. SOWs that are too long & detailed
2. Purposely omitting key information
3. Over-specifying means & methods

Best Practices
1. Carefully select mandatory vs. desired requirements
2. Focus on Current Conditions + Overall Goals/Objectives/Outcomes
3.



SOW Challenge #3: Over-Specifying Means & Methods



SOW Challenge #3: Over-Specifying Means & Methods

• “An adequate fleet of collection vehicles should be used and 
maintained by the Proposer…” 

• “It is the [Owner’s] expectation that collection vehicles 
designated for service should at a minimum be less than two 
years old at the start of the contract”

Ex: Waste Hauling



SOW Challenge #3: Over-Specifying Means & Methods

• “In order to support accurate measurements towards the 
[Client’s] sustainability goals, all vehicles must be solely 
dedicated to [the Client] and cannot be used for other sites.”

Ex: Waste Hauling



SOW Challenge #3: Over-Specifying Means & Methods

• Average Proposal Price: +46% over the Budget
• Maximum Proposal Price: +106% Over the Budget

• Scope was put together with great intentions
– Seeking high quality services & impressive sustainability goals.  

Over-emphasis on the inputs (restricting Proposer means & 
methods) can detract from the outcomes (results)!

Ex: Waste Hauling



Waste Hauling Scope

• Average Proposal Price: +46% over the Budget
• Maximum Proposal Price: +106% Over the Budget

• Scope was put together with great intentions
–Seeking high quality services & impressive sustainability goals.  

Over-emphasis on the inputs (restricting Proposer means & 
methods) can detract from the outcomes (results)!

5,000+ tons of waste collection across urban area



Elevator Maintenance
(campus-wide)

• The Proponent shall assign a dedicated maintenance 
technician to this contract.

• This individual must be solely assigned to this contract 
and will perform all preventative maintenance & major 
repairs within the building zone. 

Over-emphasis on the inputs (Proposer resources) can 
detract from the outcomes (results)!



Impact of Overly Prescriptive Scope
• Can significantly increase cost & schedule

• Removes flexibility to offer strategies & innovations for the 
specific environment

• “tie the hands” of Proposers regarding the work and manner in 
which it is undertaken

• Limits the maximum accountability & responsibility Proposers 
have to perform

Brings Risk to the Project!



Summary:
Challenges
1. SOWs that are too long & detailed
2. Purposely omitting key information
3. Over-specifying means & methods

Best Practices
1. Carefully select mandatory vs. desired requirements
2. Focus on Current Conditions + Overall Goals/Objectives/Outcomes
3.



Summary:
Challenges
1. SOWs that are too long & detailed
2. Purposely omitting key information
3. Over-specifying means & methods

Best Practices
1. Carefully select mandatory vs. desired requirements
2. Focus on Current Conditions + Overall Goals/Objectives/Outcomes
3. In special circumstances, you can use a “Vendor Generated Solution”



Tip#3: Proposal Alternates & VGS



Tip#3: Proposal Alternates & VGS
• Set the Baseline SOW for the RFP competition (apples-to-apples)

– Assume X  propose what is best?

• Then provide 1-2 optional scenarios
– Assume Y  now propose what is best?
– Open-Ended  propose what is best overall?



Base Case 
(2yr retention, Pre-Set Financial Structure)

Option B
(Open retention, Pre-Set Financial Structure)

Option C
(Wide Open)

Example: Book Store Services



Base Case 
(30yr, 250 beds, pre-set financials)

Option 2
(Open Term, 250 beds, pre-set financials)

Option 3
(Wide Open)

Example: Public-Private-Partnership for Student Residence



Tip#3: Proposal Alternates & VGS

Can be structured

*and/or*

Wide Open



Summary:
Challenges
1. SOWs that are too long & detailed
2. Purposely omitting key information
3. Over-specifying means & methods

Best Practices
1. Carefully select mandatory vs. desired requirements
2. Focus on Current Conditions + Overall Goals/Objectives/Outcomes
3. In special circumstances, you can use a “Vendor Generated Solution” 



Summary:
Challenges
1. SOWs that are too long & detailed
2. Purposely omitting key information
3. Over-specifying means & methods

Best Practices
1. Carefully select mandatory vs. desired requirements
2. Focus on Current Conditions + Overall Goals/Objectives/Outcomes
3. In special circumstances, you can use a “Vendor Generated Solution” 
4. Use the RFN when you don’t know where to start!



What to do when you 
don’t know where to start



SOW Objective

What would a High-Performing Vendor want to know?

ALWAYS question whether the SOW….
–Prevents vendors from walking away?
–Allows vendors to provide the best price?
–Gives vendors information to plan their approach?
–Enables vendors to minimize contingency?



One Of The Greatest Challenges 
In Any Procurement 

Is Preparing The 
“Statement of Work”

RFP?SOW
- Expectations
- Requirements 
- Objectives
- Constraints
- Existing Conditions



• Client has never procured the project before?

• Client is unsure what to include in the SOW (and what not to include)

• Client is unsure what vendors need to accurately price?

• Client is unsure the best approach to take?

• Client is unsure if any vendors can do all the work?

What If…



• Where do you start?

• How do you know what to put in the SOW?

• What does not need to put in the SOW?

• How much background information to include?

• What background information do they need?

SOW Confidence Index

Confidence Level

L o w

H i g h



Creating the SOW: which projects are most difficult?



Traditional Definition of Market Research

• Examining available sources to gathering information about 
your project and it’s market environment:

–Find available goods, services, and sources of supply which 
might meet your needs

• Provides information that is critical to developing 
effective procurement strategies. 



Simple 
Solution



Simple 
Solution Ask Your

Suppliers!







Procurements 
would be much 

easier!!!



REMEMBER THIS!!!

Core Objective: What would a High-Performing Vendor
need (or want) to know?

ALWAYS question whether the SOW….
–Allows vendors to provide the best price?
–Gives vendors information to plan their approach?
–Enables vendors to minimize contingency?
–Prevents vendors from walking away?



What does an Expert Vendor 
Need to Know 

to submit their best proposal 
with minimal contingency?



What is the RFN?



Request For Needs
• Informal Process

• Used to conduct market research 

• Used as a preliminary fact-finding document 

• Gather supplier feedback or advice 

• Better define a problem, need, or solution

• Help define the next steps (with ITB, RFQ, or RFP)

RFN



• Client creates & issues RFN document
• Suppliers prepare written responses
• Client SME’s review
• Client improves their SOW accordingly!



Document Contents & Size

General Recommendations:

• Current Conditions (1-2 pages)

• Goals, Outcomes, & Expectations (1-2 pages)

• RFN Response Forms (1-5 pages)
(what you want vendors to answer)



An RFN improves the SOW…

… AND speeds up the project



Strengthen & Improve Your 
Solicitations

by improving the SOW



ITBIf You Are 
Unsure About 

the SOW



ITBConfidence Level

L o w

H i g h



RFN ITB



RFPConfidence Level

L o w

H i g h



RFPRFN



Quick Review
of Solicitations



ITB



ITB



ITB
Award



RFQ



RFQ



RFQ
Award



RFP



RFP



RFP
Award



RFN
Targeted Market Research



RFN
Targeted Market Research



RFN
Targeted Market Research



Developing the RFN



Successful RFN Format & Structure

Existing Conditions or Current Situation



Successful RFN Format & Structure

Existing Conditions or Current Situation

Desired Outcomes, Goals, Expectations



Successful RFN Format & Structure

Existing Conditions or Current Situation

Desired Outcomes, Goals, Expectations

Response Form



Document Size Matters!!!
If your RFN is over 10-pages…Vendors may be:
- Less likely to read
- Less likely to provide a specific response & more 

likely to provide ‘copy-and-paste’ material



Document Size Matters!!!
If your RFN is over 10-pages…Vendors may be:
- Less likely to read
- Less likely to provide a specific response & more 

likely to provide ‘copy-and-paste’ material

Remember…Vendor is not getting paid for this!



Document Contents & Size

General Recommendations:

• Existing Conditions (1 page)

• Goals, Outcomes, & Expectations (1-2 pages)



Document Contents & Size

General Recommendations:

• Existing Conditions (1 page)

• Goals, Outcomes, & Expectations (1-2 pages)

• Response Forms (1-5 pages)



RFN Response Form

• Avoid open ended responses

• Be specific/direct with information you 
are looking for:

– Yes or No
– True or False
– 1-10 Scale



RFN Response Form
• Avoid open ended responses

• Be specific/direct with information you 
are looking for:

– Yes or No
– True or False
– 1-10 Scale

• Limit to 3-5 questions

• Responses should be limited to ½ page to 
1 page max (per question)



Keep it SIMPLE!!
Example: $0.5B Service over 10 years

RFN included:

• 1pg of SOW overview
• ½ pg RFN schedule (including info session)
• ½ pg Instructions to Vendors
• 1 pg of RFN Questions



Keep it SIMPLE!!
Example #1: $0.5B Service over 10 years

RFN questions:
1. What information you will need in the RFP to prepare the best quality and accurate proposal, 

including an accurate and binding financial proposal?  
• Please be as specific as possible so we can provide you with the appropriate information and data in the RFP.

2. Understanding that the financial proposal will be a critical aspect of the RFP evaluation proposal, 
what financial aspects should the University include in their evaluation that will most fairly 
represent the complete offerings of the proposers?  

• What all should be considered, i.e. commission percentage, guaranteed payments, capital investment, new facilities, 
rebates, etc.?

3. What is your recommended length of contract and why?

4. The University is planning on providing approximately six (6) weeks for proposals to be submitted, 
is this sufficient time?  If not, please indicate how much time should be allotted and why.

5. If there are specific items (internally) the University can begin working on now to facilitate a more 
efficient solution should a vendor be selected, please describe what those would be.

6. Please provide any other comments or recommendations that could improve the probability of 
project success.



Keep it SIMPLE!!
Example #1: $0.5B Service over 10 years

Issued
RFN

4-Weeks 
To RSVP

1-month 
for client 

to analyze

Educational session 
for Vendors



Timeline 
Example #2: Professional Services

Issued
RFN

2-Weeks 
To RSVP

1-Week To 
Analyze



Timeline



Timeline

Issue The 
RFP

Contract 
Signed



Timeline

Preparation Period

Prepare the scope
Obtain Approvals
Finalize Schedule

Coordinate with Evaluators
Prepare Solicitation



Timeline

Prepare the scope
Obtain Approvals
Finalize Schedule
Coordinate with Evaluators
Prepare Solicitation



Timeline

If Client Does 
Not Prepare…



Quality of Scope

High Quality Scope 
(Complete, Concise, & Accurate)



Quality of Scope

High Quality Scope 
(Complete, Concise, & Accurate)

Low Quality Scope 
(Complete, Concise, & Accurate)



Quality of Scope

Low Quality Scope 
(Complete, Concise, & Accurate)

• Significant Q&A
• Proposal Time Extension
• Evaluation Difficulty (Apples-to-Oranges)

• Contract Negotiation (Scope Adjustment)
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Quality of Scope

Low Quality Scope 
(Complete, Concise, & Accurate)

• Significant Q&A
• Proposal Time Extension
• Evaluation Difficulty (Apples-to-Oranges)

• Contract Negotiation (Scope Adjustment)



Quality of Scope

Low Quality Scope 
(Complete, Concise, & Accurate)

• Significant Q&A
• Proposal Time Extension
• Evaluation Difficulty (Apples-to-Oranges)

• Contract Negotiation (Scope Adjustment)



• RFN is completely informal (non-mandatory, non-binding)

• RFN can be performed at ANY time during the 
preparation phase

• RFN can be performed in 1-2 weeks!

• RFN can be skipped!

Timeline



What If New Questions Are 
Discovered After Initial RFN 

Responses Have Been Received?



Perform a Second RFN!



If Client Has Too Many Questions….



If Client Has Too Many Questions….

Prioritize!

#1 #2



For Large/Complex/Risky Projects…RFN is a Great 
Tool To Pre-Advertise



RFN vs RFI

What’s The Difference?



Industry Perception on RFI’s

Poor 
Perception of 

RFI’s

R F I



Common “Mistakes”
in RFIs
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Most Common “Mistakes”

Request ‘trade secrets’

Request ‘costing’

Request ‘wrong’ information



Negative Impacts of Traditional RFI’s

Can increase the time to procure the project or service



Negative Impacts of Traditional RFI’s

Can increase the time to procure the project or service

Can increase the amount of effort and resources to solicit



Negative Impacts of Traditional RFI’s

Can increase the time to procure the project or service

Can increase the amount of effort and resources to solicit

Can increase the amount of resources required to review 
the responses



Negative Impacts of Traditional RFI’s

Can increase the time to procure the project or service

Can increase the amount of effort and resources to solicit

Can increase the amount of resources required to review 
the responses

May not result in helpful or useful information



Traditional RFI’s Are Often 
Very Open-Ended



Traditional RFI’s Are 
Very Open-Ended

Describe your approach to….
Describe your methodology to…





Example



Example

• RFI asked 82 questions

• Did not provide a simple 
format/structure for response

• Asked for general information, or 
‘proposal-type’ information 



What Will You 
Do With This 
Information?



What Will You 
Do With This 
Information? FIRM A
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7 owned trucks

FIRM B
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3 leased trucks



What Will You 
Do With This 
Information? FIRM A

58 employees
7 owned trucks

FIRM B
79 employees
3 leased trucks

What are we gaining….How does this help us refine scope?
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What Will You 
Do With This 
Information? FIRM A

17 locations
Warehouse (7)
Office building (2)
Storage (17)

FIRM B
8 locations
Warehouse (8)
Office building (8)
Storage (8)



Results

• Client spends 2-months
• 42 page response (average)

• 99% of responses were marketing / cut & paste
• Client does not know how to utilize this 

information in the RFP Scope



Properly Structured RFN’s

Can be extremely quickly (with no impact to procurement timeline)

Can minimize the amount of effort and resources to 
solicit and review responses

Can provide very valuable and useful information



Why Use the RFN Tool?

Fair | Open | Transparent | Value | Integrity

CPE Best Practices:
Critical to become a

Client of Choice!



When to Use the RFN?



Goal of RFN?

Confidence Level

L o w

H i g h
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Does Your Project Need An RFN?
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IQ
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High 
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Project IQ - What Projects Are Best Suited?



What Projects Are Best Suited?

• Projects that organization does not have a lot of experience 
with (first time procuring or first time in 5-10 years)

• Projects that have failed in past or have high failure rate

• Projects where Client has a lot of uncertainties about scope

• Immature industries 



Examples
(Assume The Owner Is A University)

Scope: Client is seeking to renovate an existing office space in a building.
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1. Client Experience: High (has performed 13 similar renovations this year)
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3. Clarity of scope: High (no concerns with the scope)

4. Industry Maturity: High
RFN 

Unlikely



Examples
(Assume The Owner Is A University)

Scope: Client is seeking to renovate electrical/lighting in a dormitory.



Examples
(Assume The Owner Is A University)

Scope: Client is seeking to renovate electrical/lighting in a dormitory.

1. Client Experience: High (has performed 5 similar renovations this year)

2. Previous Success Rate: Moderate (challenges, but no significant issues) 

3. Clarity of scope: Moderate (some unknowns, but not concerned)

4. Industry Maturity: High
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Examples
(Assume The Owner Is A University)

Scope: Client needs to re-procure janitorial contract that will be expiring this year.  
Current contract has been in place for 5-years.

1. Client Experience: Low (has performed 2 in last 10 years)

2. Previous Success Rate: High (challenges, but no significant issues) 

3. Clarity of scope: High (very complete scope)

4. Industry Maturity: High
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Scope: Client needs to procure a new food-service contract.  This is currently being done 
in-house and will be the first time outsourcing this service.  

1. Client Experience: Low (never been performed)

2. Previous Success Rate: n/a
3. Clarity of scope: Low (not exactly sure what needs to be included)

4. Industry Maturity: High
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Scope: Client is looking to purchase a new Travel Management System to bring more 
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Examples
(Assume The Owner Is A University)

Scope: Client is looking to renew an existing HR Software contract.  The current contract 
has been in place for 3-years and the client wants to purchase a different system. 

1. Client Experience: Low (2 times in the past 10 years)

2. Previous Success Rate: Low-Moderate (many performance challenges)

3. Clarity of scope: Moderate (client feels good, but has some questions)

4. Industry Maturity: Low (IT related project)
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Examples
(Assume The Owner Is A University)

Scope: Client is looking to renew an existing HR Software contract.  The current contract 
has been in place for 3-years and the client wants to purchase a different system. 

1. Client Experience: Low (3 times in the past 10 years)

2. Previous Success Rate: Low-Moderate (many performance challenges)

3. Clarity of scope: Moderate (client feels good, but has some questions)

4. Industry Maturity: Low (IT related project)



Summary

PROJECT SCOPE Experience
Previous 
Success 

Rate
SOW Clarity

Industry 
Maturity

Renovating office space in a building? High High High High

Renovating lighting in a dormitory? High Moderate Moderate High

Procuring a janitorial contract (renewal)? Moderate Moderate High High

Procuring a new food service contract (new)? Low n/a Low High

Procuring a new travel management system (new)? Low n/a Low Low

Procuring a HR software contract (renewal)? Low Moderate Moderate Low

Unlikely

Unlikely

Unlikely

LIKELY

LIKELY

LIKELY



Advanced RFN 
Practices



WRITTEN APPROACH VERBAL APPROACH

• Client creates & issues RFN document
• Suppliers prepare written responses
• Client SME’s review
• Client improves their SOW accordingly!

• Client creates & issues RFN document
• Suppliers verbally present responses online
• Client SME’s ask follow-up questions
• Client improves their SOW accordingly!



Accelerated RFN
• Rather than requesting a written response, 

perform entire RFN online (through video)

• Greatly minimizes vendor time (which 
encourages participation, and minimizes cut-
and-paste material)

• Minimizes owner time (less time to prepare 
RFN, but much less time to participate in the 
proposals versus reading and digesting)
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